Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
January 14, 2020
Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday January 14, 2020 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner
CIiff Braly, Commissioner Kenny Campen and Commissioner David Gaskins.

Others present: Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Cletk Donna Scott,

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to, December 10, 2019 minutes.
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the January 14, 2020 agenda. Mayor
Fowler asked to add item #12 Miscellaneous to the Agenda. Commissioner Braly moved to
accept the agenda as amended. All ayes.

Public Comments: Grant thanked the Mayor and the board of commissioners for the giving
of their time and serving the Town of Minnesott Beach’s residents. Mayor Fowler and the
Commissioners thanked him for his compliments and said it was nice to hear.

Agenda Items for discussion and possible motion or action

Minnesott Golf & Country Club property purchase: Mayor Fowler reported the Board
had a Special Closed meeting January 7, which the NC General Statutes allows for several
reasons. Under NC General Statutes SS 143-318.11 (a. 3) To consult with an attorney
emploved by the Town of Minnesott Beach in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege
between the attorney and the Town and NC GS S8 143-318.11 (a. 5) to establish, or to
instruct the Town’s staff concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the Town in
negotiating terms of a contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of the property on
which the Minnesott Golf and Country Club sits and potential lease back of the property to
the club. Mayor Fowler said this allowed for the entire board to have their questions and
concerns answered. Mayvor Fowler said our attorney recommended a title search of the
proposed property and to determine a Fair Market Value for the property and a Fair Market
Value for a lease back. The former can be done by our attorney and the latter would require
contracting with an independent service called Hotel & Club out of Greensboro at a cost of
$5,900. He said the MG&CC is moving forward and he asked Ed Kujat to give the board an
update. the MG&CC is moving forward and he asked Ed Kujat to give the board an update.
Mr. Kujat, President of the MG&CC, said the club held a members meeting in October and
asked to put the club up for sale. December 6th, they contacted the four (4) entities who had
expressed interest in purchasing the club for their best and final offer by January 157, He

1/14/2020 BOC meeting 1



said they were waiting to see who will come forward. He reported they have a members
meeting scheduled for January 26. Mr. Kujat said they are placing a priority on whomever
comes forward to purchase the property with the intention of operating as a golf club and not
develop it. They want to make a decision by January 31*. He said if the Town is interested
in purchasing the property, it will become one of those interested. Mr. Kujat said he would
not want the Town to move forward to commit to $5,900 until the members meet.
Commissioner Campen questioned Mr. Kujat on this recommendation. Mr. Kujat said the
Town should wait to see which way the membership wants to go. Mayor Fowler said the
Town was looking forward to moving forward, but will wait for the membership to vote.
Commissioner Braly said the Town would not be put at risk if we say we are interested in
purchasing the land but wait until after the member meeting. Mr. Kujat said the unknown for
the club is the FMV of the land and the lease back. He also asked if the club just shuts down
would the Town be interested in purchasing the land? Commissioner Braly said our attorney
cannot site a single case that is similar to what the Town wants to do. He is looking out for
the Town but will work to protect us. Mayor Fowler said the commissioners can call an
emergency meeting with a 48-hr notice to sign the contract with Hotel & Club depending on
how the members vote on the 26". Commissioner Gaskins said the attorney will figure out a
FMYV lease back based on the market analysis. Mayor Fowler asked to table the vote to
purchase. He said the club knows the Town’s intent is to move forward. Commissioner
Garfinkel asked if anyone else was doing a FMV analysis of the land. Mr. Kujat said, “No.”
Commissioner Gaskins moved to authorize our attorney to do a title search on the MG&CC
property. All ayes,

Town Manager’s report: There are no new zoning applications. Only one application has
been received for the maintenance job. There have been two others express interest. The

Town Manager will set up interviews. She said she renewed a CD at CresCom Bank on
12/27/2019 @ 0.995% for 12 months.

Planning Board Report: Commissioner Garfinkel reported the Planning Board did
not meet in January.

He reported the planning board will address the ordinance requiring utility companies to
notify the town of any work in the rights-of-way. He said they want to keep it simple at
less than a page. He said they would have something to recommend to the Board of
Commissioners next month.

Commissioner Garfinkel said Arlington Place has asked to change the wording in
Ordinance 151.164 R-M Multi-Family Dwelling District (C) deals with multiple
buildings on a single lot with single ownership. Arlington Place has asked for guidance
to establish the sale of multiple buildings to multiple owners on a single lot. The
Planning Board will look at changing the language from “single ownership” to
“multiple ownership.” Commissioner Garfinkel said he wants to present this to Becca
Lang before formally presenting it to the Commissioners.

Commissioner Garfinkel said the third item on their agenda is to consider a greenway
that would be a buffer zone between any development and residential property adjacent
to it. It was tabled for a futurc date.

1/14/2020 BOC meeling 2



Commissioner Garfinkel said he was contacted by a resident for a variance to the
ordinance that requires the main dwelling to be 80% completed before an assessory
building could be built. This resident says the primary dwelling will take up most of
the width of the lot and the assessory building could not be placed on the rear of the lot
after the primary dwelling is 80% complete. He said the cost for a variance is $200
non-refundable. The Planning Board will discuss the options available. Mayor Fowler
said to get a variance is extremely difficult.

Finance Report: Commissioner Gaskins reported all income and expenditures were
within the budgeted ranges. The Town’s current assets as of December 31, 2019 are:
First Citizen's Bank Checking $8,360.89; First Citizen's MM $270,138.51; CressCom
Bank’s Savings $218,948.48; North Carolina Management Trust is $210,340.31; Petty
Cash $50.00. Total assets for the Town are $963,678.07. Commissioner Gaskins made
a motion to move $360 from 402 Contingency Fund to 417 Cost of Elections in the
Budget Performance report. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler said he had been questioned about pay raises for the Town’s employees. He
said the employees were given a 2.5% wage increase in July. They were given a Christmas
bonus and a merit bonus in December. This is reflected in the November BOC minutes.
Commissioner Garfinkel said the Town’s four employees are all part-time, they do not get
benefits and we need to take care of them.

Town projects: Mayor Fowler complimented the progress of the remodeling of the
Town Hall. Commissioner Braly said we are waiting for the electrician to move the
outlets and install the new light fixtures. He said the men’s room needs some attention.
He will let the board know if any extra funds are needed.

Commissioner Braly reported he will be meeting with Ken Heath regarding the
drainage at the intersection of Country Club Drive and Hardison Drive. He said they
will “shoot” the elevations and determine the fall to insure proper drainage. They will
also look at what needs to be done to the drop inlet.

Commissioner Braly said saga with the issues on Country Club Drive West culvert at
Bennett Road is ongoing. Getting the state engineers together with everyone else is
proving to be a challenge. He said he was not doing anything until he has a schedule of
who’s doing what and when materials will be onsite. Commissioner Braly said he will
talk with the DOT engineers on the 215

Commissioner Braly said Tideland was out today and helped removed the Christmas
decorations.

Mayor Fowler reported Tideland subcontractors showed up unannounced cutting tree
limbs from the powerlines. There were some real issues where they ripped up the
drainage ditches on Country Club West when they cut the last time. He thanked
Commissioner Braly for talking with the folks and kept the problem from happening
again! He said they said they would be back to pick up the debris.

1/14/2020 BOC meeting



Commissioner Gaskins asked about the email regarding Willowbrook Road. Mayor
Fowler said Willowbrook Road is a private road and is not maintained by the Town.
Mayor Fowler said the Town Manager responded to their inquiry.

Miscellaneous: Mayor Fowler read the lovely Thank You note from Ben Casey
following the death of his wife, Carolyn Casey, a former Commissioner.

Mayor Fowler asked if the Town had received a Thank You note from the Arapahoc Fire
Department and was told no.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn the regular meeting
at 8:10pm. All Ayes.

Drara Mot

Donna Scott, Town Clerk

1/14/2020 BOC meeting



